HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
March 6, 2012
1:36 p.m

1: 36: 36 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair Thomas called the House Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 1:36 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bill Stoltze, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Thomas Jr., Co-Chair
Representati ve Anna Faircl ough, Vice-Chair
Representative Ma Costello
Representative M ke Doogan

Representati ve Bryce Edgnon
Representative Les Gara

Representative David Cuttenberg
Represent ati ve Reggi e Joul e

Representati ve Mark Neuman
Representative Tanme W/ son

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Luke Dihle, Parent, Juneau; Patricia Dihle, Teacher,
Juneau; Clara Am don, Teacher, Alaska Native Cultural
Charter School Anchor age; Li sa Par ady, Assi st ant
Superintendent, North Slope Borough School District, North
Sl ope; Kevin Barnett, Teacher, Lewis Angapak Menori al
School, Tuntutuliak; Andi Story, Juneau School Board,
Juneau; Bruce Johnson, Executive Director, Al aska Council
of School Adm nistrators, Juneau; Richard Mnkman, Chair,
Juneau Douglas H gh School Site Council, Juneau; Lisa
Johnson, Teacher, Tudor Elenentary School, Anchorage; Peggy
Brown, Executive Director, Alaska Network on Donestic
Vi ol ence and Sexual Assault; Denise Daniello, Executive
Director, Alaska Comm ssion on Aging, Juneau; Sheryl
Wei nberg, Executive Director, Alaska Educational Resource
Center (SERRC), Juneau; John Alcantra, Governnent Rel ations

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1 03/06/12 1:36 P. M



Director, National Education Association-Al aska, Mat-Su;
Lillian Worl, Par ent , Juneau,; Mark  Vinsel, Executive
Director, United Fishernmen of Alaska; N lIs D hle, Parent
and Retired Teacher, Juneau; Carl Rose, Executive Director,
Al aska Association of School Boards, Juneau; Jennifer
LaRoe, Par ent , Juneau; Representative Beth Kerttula,
Representati ve Cat hy Miunoz.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

E. Robert Mackey, Self, Kotzebue; Derek WMartin, Cty of
Kot zebue, Kot zebue; Mary E. Green, Lower Kuskokw n School
District, Early Education, Bethel; Janet Balice, Head
Start, None; Lily Ray, University of Al aska, Fairbanks,
None; Linda Divers, |Imagination Library, Brevig M ssion;
Pol Iy Poctoo, Inmagination Library, Brevig Mssion; Jennifer
Charvet, Alaska Brain Injury Network, Anchorage; Jeanne
Garhart-Cyrus, Self, Kaina; Mchelle Dewitt, Tanana Wnen's
Conference, Bethel; Brittanee Perry, Self, Anchorage; John
Crews, Self, Anchorage; R <c Nelson, Vice-chair of the
Governor's Council on Disability and Special Education,
Anchor age; Suzi Pearson, Executive Director, Abused Wnen
Ald and Crisis, Anchor age; Jonat han  Teeters, Sel f,
Anchor age; Al exander Von Hoffman, Chair, Alaska Psychiatry
Residency Steering Commttee; Paula Cullenberg, Director,
Al aska Sea Grant Marine Advisory Program Anchorage; Emly
Nenon, Anerican Cancer Society Cancer Action Network,
Anchorage; Kristin English, Chief Operating Oficer, Cook
Inlet Tribal Council, Anchorage; David Waver, Self,
Anchorage; Dirk Shunmeker, Executive Director, Kids Corps
Head Start, Anchorage; Sarah Leonard, Self, Anchorage;
Robin Bronen, Self, Anchorage; Jennifer Lincoln, Self,
Anchorage; Pauline P. Smth, Palnmer; Terri Lynn Draeger,
Student, University of Al aska, Anchorage; Matthew Houser,
Corrections Oficer, Anchorage; Terri Block, Alaska Brain
Injury Association, Wsilla; Peter Finn, Self, Anchorage;
Bob Lohr, Self, Anchorage; Martin Crow ey, Correctional
O ficer, Anchorage.

SUMVARY
HB 284 APPROP: OPERATI NG BUDGET/ LOANS/ FUNDS

HB 284 was HEARD and HELD in Conmmittee for
further consideration.

HB 285 APPROP: MENTAL HEALTH BUDGET

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 03/06/12 1:36 P. M



HB 285 was HEARD and HELD in Committee for
further consideration.

#hb284
#hb285

HOUSE BI LL NO. 284

"An Act nmeking appropriations for the operating and
| oan program expenses of state governnment and for
certain progr ans, capitali zing f unds, anmendi ng
appropri ations, and nmaking reappropriations; and
providing for an effective date."

HOUSE BILL NO. 285

"An Act neking appropriations for the operating and
capi tal expenses of t he state's i nt egrated
conprehensi ve nental health program and providing for
an effective date."

1:36: 47 PM

JUNEAU

LUKE DI HLE, PARENT, JUNEAU, spoke in support of education
funding. He stressed that an investnent in education was an
investnment in Alaska's future. He discussed the inportance
of | ow teacher-student rati os.

1: 39: 02 PM

PATRICI A DI HLE, TEACHER, JUNEAU, ur ged support for
education funding. She felt that arts and |ow teacher-
student ratios were inportant. She was one of tw co-
teachers, which worked very well and hel ped students to
flourish. She was worried that sone districts were
considering cutting nurses, and special progranms. She
stressed the inportance of an increase to the current
education increnment in order to keep inportant enployees in
school s.

1: 40: 53 PM

CLARA AM DON, TEACHER, ALASKA NATIVE CULTURAL CHARTER
SCHOCOL, ANCHORAGE, vocalized support for education funding.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 03/06/12 1:36 P. M



She currently taught a classroom of 28 el enentary students;
other elenentary school teachers would reach the sane
cl assroom size if education funding was frozen for another
year. She expressed that the current year had been the nopst
difficult year so far; neeting the needs of all 28 children
had been the nost chall enging aspect of her school year.
She urged a K-12 funding increase.

1:42: 20 PM

LI SA PARADY, ASSI STANT SUPERI NTENDENT, NORTH SLOPE BOROUGH
SCHOOL DI STRICT, NORTH SLOPE, spoke in strong support of
increased funding for the Base Student Allocation (BSA).
She stressed that it was vital to keep the foundation
current and to prevent erosion from inflation. It took
resources to deliver content to Alaska's students. The
North Slope district was facing budget pressures annually
and had been forced to nmake deep cuts. Pressures felt were
in health care, energy, utilities, fuel, logistics, food

and other. There was currently a $3 mllion shortfall from
service levels. The governor's proposed BSA increase of
$125 mllion would result in approximtely $600,000 in
funding to the North Slope School District; it did not neet
the district's need, but would help it to close the gap.

She voiced support for the Al aska Learning Network. The
network operated as the great equalizer across the state
and used technology to make education nore accessible. The
network supported consistency from year to year. She
expl ai ned that neeting the Al aska Performance Schol arship
required courses that were not always accessible in rura

school s; the network hel ped students to have access to the
required cl asses.

1:47: 00 PM

KEVIN BARNETT, TEACHER, LEWS ANGAPAK MEMORI AL SCHOOL,
TUNTUTULI AK, spoke in favor of a K-12 education funding
increase. He opined that passing a budget reflecting a
decrease in the BSA for FY 13 was irresponsible. Costs
continued to increase dramatically for rural schools in
areas such as heating and conputer supplies. The chall enges
of providing a quality education in villages did not need
to be further heightened by failing to provide schools with
the necessary resources. Denying students opportunities
because resources were consuned paying the school bills
restricted students from essential experiences that would
allow them to becone valuable nenbers of their community.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 03/06/12 1:36 P. M



He wanted students to receive an education that would
enable themto take on a rigorous job.

1:49: 29 PM

ANDI STORY, JUNEAU SCHOOL BQARD, JUNEAU, urged support for
an increase to education funding. She reported that
graduation rates at the two high schools in Juneau were 87
percent and 86 percent. The achi evenent in reading and math
had clinbed steadily in the past four years. The graduation
requi renents had been increased in line wth the Al aska
Performance Scholarship requirenments. The schools were
focusing on professional devel opment for principals and on
staff evaluation. The noney in the operating budget was
approximately $5.8 mllion less for Juneau schools. Under
the current funding nore than 65 school staff would |ose
their jobs. She relayed that the loss in jobs would
negatively inpact the Juneau economy. She stressed that
students had conpl ex and vari ed needs.

Representative Gara wondered whether Juneau school scores
had increased because of increases to the BSA in past
years. He asked how Ms. Story felt about increasing the BSA
versus a one-tine BSA fundi ng.

Ms. Story responded that achievenent had increased due to
past increases in the BSA She explained that the school
had been able to inplenent specific prograns that woul d not
have been possible otherwise. She believed the school
district and the |legislature could work together to devel op
a timefrane and a plan for school funding that would create
public confidence in schools. Wen funding was outside of
the fornula schools were faced with making cuts annually;
fundi ng recei ved ahead of tinme would allow the districts to
strategically plan. The Departnment of Education and Early
Devel opnent trained special education nentors and provided
teacher training; cutting teacher position did not help
school s and wasted nobney spent on training.

1:54: 33 PM

BRUCE JOHNSON, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, ALASKA COUNCI L OF SCHOOL
ADM NI STRATORS, JUNEAU, spoke in support of education
foundation fornmula funding. He enphasized that there would
be budget deficits and severe cuts if education renained
flat funded. He enphasi zed the inportance of an increase to
the BSA over nultiple years that would provide predictable

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 03/06/12 1:36 P. M



revenue and would allow districts to develop budgets and
educational prograns in an efficient way. The schools felt
a direct inpact when funds were redirected to heating,
utility, and bus contract costs. He pointed to the success
of early learning opportunities for children. He stressed
that state nust do better if it was to help all young
people to realize their dreanms. He thanked the conmttee
for its support.

Co- Chair Thomas wondered why schools could not plan for
wage costs if allocations had been forward funded in the
past. He noted that forward funding now neant forward
i ncrement increases to sone schools.

M. Johnson replied that the legislature had put forward
BSA funds to fund 56/80 under the current scenario. There
was no question that districts could plan on the 56/ 80 BSA.
The funding was very different from funds provided to other
state agencies that had a set increnment they could count
on. The school district had no way of requesting a
supplement. Districts appreciated that noney had been set
aside, but it did not prevent the agony that was presented
when enpl oyees had to be laid off. Superintendents hoped to
know what the funding increment would be in advance. He
furthered that it would be very helpful if the increnent
took into account cost of |iving experiences.

Co- Chair Thomas believed that Departnent of Admnistration
was responsible for negotiating enployee contracts. He
thought that if the legislature was responsible for
teaching negotiations it would be nore in touch with the
i ssue.

2:01: 40 PM

M. Johnson appreciated the forward funding concept. The
56/ 80 target was not sufficient to nmeet growi ng demands.

Co-Chair Thomas conmmented that when graduation rates were
not at 100 percent that noney was lost. He noted that
Sout heast Al aska was |osing students and that putting nore
nmoney into schools would not help if students were | ost.

Representative WIson asked how nmuch of the shortfall was
due to a loss of federal stinmulus funding. M. Johnson
replied that the seven districts he represented had no
stimulus carry-over or jobs-bill carry-over in any of the

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 03/06/12 1:36 P. M



figures he had provided. Schools recognized that they did
not have the right to ask the legislature to continue one-
time federal funding that districts had used in a variety
of ways.

2:03: 54 PM

RI CHARD MONKMAN, CHAIR, JUNEAU DOUGLAS H GH SCHOOL SITE
COUNCI L, JUNEAU, vocalized support for an increase to the
BSA. He explained that the process of cutting progranms
because of the $6 mllion education cut was extraordinarily
pai nful . The types of progranms that had been cut were sone
of the nost valuable in bringing famlies and students into
the schools. He opined that one of the keys to student
success was an involved famly. He listed prograns the
district was faced wth cutting including, gifted and
talented, nusic, native cultural paraeducators, nurses and
other. He relayed that there were algebra classes with 38
students and science classes that would have 29 or 30
students the next year. He encouraged the commttee to
i ncrease t he BSA

Co- Chair Thonmas wondered how much of the rural safe schools
nmoney had inpacted the current Juneau school district's
budget. M. Mnkman did not know and deferred the question
to Andi Story

Co-Chair Thomas infornmed the commttee that the rural safe
school program provided the Tongass and Chugiak forests
with extra noney for tinber receipts. He believed it had
been a significant anount of noney at one point.

2:07: 00 PM

LI SA JOHNSON, TEACHER, TUDOR ELEMENTARY SCHOOL, ANCHORAGE
spoke against the flat funding of education that would not
address the growing needs of children. She opined that
i ncreased standards at the kindergarten |evel wthout pre-
school were counter to student achievenment. She urged the
proper funding of schools for all grade |evels and stressed
t he i nmportance of increasing the BSA

2:08:15 PM

PEGGY BROAN, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, ALASKA NETWORK ON DOVESTI C
VI OLENCE AND SEXUAL ASSAULT, spoke in support for victins
service agencies. She thanked the commttee for the budget

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 03/06/12 1:36 P. M



increnent that would help the agencies to cover rising fuel
costs. She spoke in support of the public awareness nedia
canpaigns. The <canpaigns targeted different groups of
people for different reasons. An increased percentage of
victins were young nmen and teens. She believed the nedia
canpai gn was working to reach people across the state.

Co-Chair Thomas asked whether M. Brown had seen the
presentation to the House Finance Conmttee from nmultiple
departnment comm ssioners on the issue several weeks
earlier. Ms. Brown responded in the affirmative.

2:11: 04 PM

DENI SE DANI ELLO, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, ALASKA COWM SSION ON
AG NG, JUNEAU, thanked the conmttee for its support of
increments for two senior grant prograns. The prograns
provi ded support for caregivers and helped seniors to
remain in their homes and comunities for as long as
possible. There was a significant wait list for senior in
home services in Bethel, D llingham Fairbanks, None,
Val dez, and Cordova; the additional funding would help to
address the needs. She discussed that adult day prograns
provided services in a structured setting for seniors
including nutritional support, caregiver support, personal
care support, and other. She reiterated her thanks for the
f undi ng.

2:13:49 PM

SHERYL WEI NBERG  EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, ALASKA EDUCATI ONAL
RESOURCE CENTER (SERRC), JUNEAU, spoke in support of the
Al aska Transition Qutcone Project. She appreciated funding
support for the project. She stressed the inportance of
transitional resources for people with disabilities that
were critical helping individuals to succeed as an adult.
Transition plans were required to focus on enploynent,
education and training, i ndependent |iving, comunity
participation, and recreation. A nyriad of services were
provided to teachers and students including, on-site
assessnents of transition activities, technical assistance,
wor kshops  at the annual education conference, and
transition canps. The canps had been operating for the past
nine years and were currently held in a variety of
| ocations; students focused on a person-centered plan that
becanme the roadmap for the remainder of their high school

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 03/06/12 1:36 P. M



year. She believed the program had hel ped many students to
be successful.

Representative WIson wondered whether SERRC was a non-
profit or gani zati on. V5. Wi nber g replied in t he
affirmati ve.

Representative WIlson clarified that there was a $150, 000
increment in the budget for the programs. M. Winberg
replied in the affirmative and thanked the commttee for
continued support. She added that SERRC had augnented the
al l ocation throughout its years of operation.

2:19: 20 PM

JOHN ALCANTRA, GOVERNMENT RELATIONS DI RECTOR,  NATI ONAL
EDUCATI ON ASSQOCI ATI ON- ALASKA, MAT-SU, spoke in support of
an increase to the BSA. He thanked the committee for past
education funding. The wupcomng fiscal year would be
anot her year of flat, frozen, or full funding through the
BSA, which represented an actual decrease in real dollars

for K-12 foundation and pupil transportation. He urged
support for K-12 and pre-K funding. He provided a quote by
t he phil osopher Confucius: "If your plan is for one year

plant rice. If your plan is for ten years plant trees. If
your plan is for one hundred years educate children.”

2:20: 45 PM

LI LLI AN  WORL, PARENT, JUNEAU, spoke in support for
increased funds for schools. She explained that nost
teachers supplenented their classroom supply budgets wth
personal funds. Juneau was looking at a $5.8 nillion
deficit in the comng year which neant |arger classroom
sizes and increased fundraising for students to have the
ability to participate in after school activities. She
referred to the need for technology for students to remain
conpetitive. She was disheartened at the loss of 66
positions in local schools. Vast inprovenents could not be
made when cuts were made to basic progranms. She thanked the
conmittee for its tine.

2:23:51 PM

MARK VI NSEL, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, UNIl TED FI SHERMEN OF
ALASKA, supported an increase to the proposed budget
i ncr enent for the Al aska Mar i ne Safety Educati on

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 03/06/12 1:36 P. M



Association in the amount of $197,000 under the Departnment
of Conmerce, Community and Econom c Devel opnent. He rel ayed
that the programwas a critical conponent for the safety of
commercial fishing fleets; it offered hands on training and
reached hundreds of communities. There were increased
safety training requirenents in the commercial fisheries
industry. At least 55 fishernen had vocalized that the
training had been invaluable when they had faced life
threateni ng circunstances. He explained that a | oss of just
one of those lives would be a nuch higher cost to famlies,
communities, and the state. He requested an increase to the
governor's proposed increnent that flat funded the program
and urged the conmttee to provide full funding.

2:25:47 PM

NI LS DI HLE, PARENT AND RETI RED TEACHER, JUNEAU, advocated
for a K-12 and preschool classroom BSA funding increase. He
had worked as a teacher and professional counselor; he was
also a father and grandfather. He reinforced the idea of
short-term versus long-term he believed it was inportant
to spend nore up front rather than spending a higher anount
later. He stressed the inportance of early education. He
expl ai ned that an ounce of prevention was worth a pound of
cure.

Representative Gara queried the inpact of increased class
sizes. M. D hle responded that he renenbered |oving the
flu season in Al aska when his classroom had been smaller;
it had really nmade a difference in his ability to work with
the students. He added his support for senior services and
adult day care prograns.

2: 30: 57 PM

CARL ROSE, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, ALASKA ASSQOCI ATI ON OF SCHOOL
BOARDS, JUNEAU, thanked the committee for the $1.2 billion
in the education fund. He supported the $6 mllion for
Public Enployees' Retirenent System (PERS) and Teachers'
Retirement System (TRS) liability. He stressed that student
achi evenent was on the rise and academ c scores were up. He
bel i eved educators were doing a good job. The seven | argest
districts of the state with approxinately 80 percent of the
student popul ation were facing a serious deficit. He urged
support for an increase to the BSA;, rising energy costs,
pupi | transportation, health, insurance increases, salaries
and benefits were all paid for with the BSA. He stressed

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 03/06/12 1:36 P. M



t hat education was forward funded if the BSA was consi dered
to be 56/80; schools did use the noney to plan and had
caused themto be in deficit across the state. He supported
HB 284 as anmended. He stressed that schools were stretched
very thin.

2:34:35 PM

JENNI FER LARCE, PARENT, JUNEAU, (read into the record by
Andi Story):

My nane is Jennifer LaRoe. | live 5134 dd acier
H ghway, Juneau, AK with my children, Lila Quigley
(turns 9 this nonth-third grader at Har bor vi ew
El emrentary), and Mles Qigley (turns 6 next nonth-
ki ndergartner at Harborview Elenentary) and their

father, Dylan Quigley.

| noved to Juneau in 1994 after living in Bethel as a
volunteer for one year. | have a strong background in
children and education, having worked in a variety of
non-profit youth prograns and educational settings for
over twenty vyears, including working with children
with special needs. Since ny children started
receiving formal educati on, I have consistently
conmitted tine to volunteer in their classroons on a
regul ar basis. | ama current parent representative on
the Harborview Site Council and have been making great
effort to build a school garden this year.

| am concerned with the pupil to teacher ratios being
affected by proposed budget cuts. Special education
positions are being considered to be cut. These staff
menbers were the key ingredient to making a difference
in nmy son's Kindergarten. There are currently three
aids that spend tinme in the classroom daily and help
keep the peace and provide inportant one-on-one
guidance to identified students who would otherw se
domnate the teacher's time, effort and energy.
Neither of my children demands nuch attention, but

they still deserve educational attention from their
teachers. Cutting increases to school funding puts ny
children's education at risk. | am not wlling to

continue supporting the school systemif you are not.

It's up to the State Legislature to provide the
financial resources to ensure ny children get a great

House Fi nance Conmmittee 11 03/06/12 1:36 P. M



education here in Alaska. Funding as proposed in the
Governor's budget doesn't get the job done.

2:36:50 PM
AT EASE

2:57:33 PM
RECONVENED

BETHEL, KOTZEBUE, BARROW NOME, DELTA JUNCTI ON, OFF- NETS

E. ROBERT MACKEY, SELF, KOTZEBUE (via teleconference),
testified in support of the University of Alaska' s budget
request. He pointed out that staff had seen a net decrease
in pay, which could result in staffing challenges.

DEREK MARTI N, CTY OF KOTZEBUE, KOTZEBUE (via
tel econference), spoke in support of Village Public Safety
Oficers, the Kotzebue regional comunity jail and Division
of Modtor Vehicle funding.

3:03: 03 PM

MARY E. GREEN, LOANER KUSKOKW N SCHOOL DI STRICT, EARLY
EDUCATI ON, BETHEL (via teleconference), testified in
support of early education funding. She observed that they
are in the last year of federal pre-school funding, and
mai ntained that children that attend quality pre-schools
have hi gher performance rates and were | ess troubl ed.

JANET BALICE, HEAD START, NOME (via teleconference), spoke
in support of early education funding. She stressed that
the average of grade proficient students was doubled wth
the program There are 38 students on the waiting |ist.

3:05:51 PM

Vice-chair Fairclough reiterated that 50 percent of their
students were grade proficient entering kindergarten. M.
Bal i ce observed that the average for children not attending
Head Start was 24 percent. There was a 26 percent increase
over the average for children attending Head Start.

LILY RAY, UNI VERSI TY OF ALASKA, FAI RBANKS, NOVE (via
tel econference), spoke in support of the Resilience and
Adaptation program to allow research for |ocal problens by
| ocal students. She provided information on successful |and

House Fi nance Conmmittee 12 03/06/12 1:36 P. M



managemnent techni ques that came through information
obt ai ned by the program

3:09:13 PM

LINDA DI VERS, |MAG NATION LIBRARY, BREVIG MSSION (via
t el econference), testified in support of the Best
Begi nnings program She noted that there were over 50
children enrolled in the program

POLLY POCTOO, | MAG NATION LIBRARY, BREVIG M SSION (via
t el econf erence), testified in support of the Best
Begi nnings program She stressed the inportance of early
readi ng skills.

JENNI FER CHARVET, ALASKA BRAIN | NJURY NETWORK, ANCHORAGE
(via teleconference), spoke in support of funding for the
Al aska Behavior Conplex Collaborative for training and
consul tation. She stressed the need for referral services.

3:14: 02 PM

JEANNE GARHART- CYRUS, SELF, KAINA (via teleconference),
spoke in support of funding for the Al aska Behavi or Conpl ex
Col | aborative. She noted that the conplex offered training
for parents as well as treatnment and enphasized that the
program hel ped create conpetent citizens. She pointed out
t hat there were not sufficient services in small
conmuni ti es.

3:16: 54 PM
RECESSED

3:31:18 PM
RECONVENED

M CHELLE DEW TT, TANANA WOMEN S CONFERENCE, BETHEL (via
tel econference), testified in support of donestic violence
and sexual assault funding.

3:33:25 PM
RECESSED

4:09:43 PM
RECONVENED

4:10:10 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 03/06/12 1:36 P. M



ANCHORAGE

BRI TTANEE PERRY, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
spoke in support of the Alaska Vocational and Technical
Educati on (AVTEC) funding. She encouraged nore funding for
t he Regi stered Nurses program

4:12:53 PM

JOHN CREWS, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), testified
in support of AVIEC funding. He spoke against cutting
funding for the Registered Nurses program

Representative Doogan was grateful for M. Crews'
testimony. Co-Chair Thomas stressed that the AVTEC funding
was not cut from the Operating Budget. He stated that it
was not included as an increnent in the governor's
pr oposal .

4:16: 36 PM

RIC NELSON, VICE-CHAIR OF THE GOVERNOR S COUNCIL ON
Dl SABI LI TY AND SPECI AL EDUCATI ON, ANCHORAGE (via
tel econference), testified in support of the Al aska Conpl ex
Behavi or Col |l aborative. He stated that the Al aska Conpl ex
Behavi or Col | aborative was highly successful, and received
referrals from several |ocations in Al aska. He explained
that the Collaborative had recently expanded to include
children. He stressed that the Collaborative was a mnuch
needed service, and included a team of doctor-|evel experts
that were available to quickly intervene when an individual
with harnful behaviors could no longer be served in their
home or community. He reported that as of Decenber 2011,
Al askans with conpl ex behaviors were starting to |eave the
state to seek treatnent. He explained that energency roons,
the Al aska Psychiatric Institute, and the Departnent of
Corrections were not appropriate placenment |ocations for
i ndi viduals with conpl ex behavior issues.

4:24:57 PM

SUZI  PEARSON, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, ABUSED WOMEN AID AND
CRI SIS, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), spoke in support of
donmestic violence and sexual assault program funding. She
stated that the Abused Wnen Aid and Crisis (AWAIC) had
seen an increase in several areas, including health

House Fi nance Conmmittee 14 03/06/12 1:36 P. M



i nsurance, which was inportant to recruit and retain
qualified staff. She added that the cost of food was
rising, and she stressed that the Al aska Food Bank had
l[imted the nunmber of days that non-profit organizations
could use the food bank. As a result, AWAIC was buying nore
food and incurring nore cost. She reported that there had
been a slightly reduced cost in utilities, thanks to a
state appropriation in 2011.

4:26:45 PM

Representative Gara wondered if the Abused Wnen Aid and
Crisis (AWAIC) was over-capacity. M. Pearson replied that
AVWAI C was over-capacity.

Representative Gara wondered if there was a plan to deal
with the over-capacity issue. M. Pearson replied that
there were several plans in place, and hoped for further
fundi ng to enhance AWAI C.

4:29:27 PM

JONATHAN TEETERS, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
vocal i zed support of Best Beginnings funding and the 25
| magi nation Library affiliates. He felt that the funding
woul d provi de t he needed resour ces for comunity
partnershi ps and connections with parents.

4:32:53 PM

ALEXANDER VON HOFFMAN, CHAI R, ALASKA PSYCH ATRY RESI DENCY
STEERFNG COW TTEE (via teleconference), testified in
support of funding the Al aska Psychiatry Residency. He
stated that the Al aska Psychiatry Residency was the best
| ong-term solution to increase the supply of psychiatry in
rural and wurban Alaska. He stressed that the Al aska
Psychiatry Residency was a top work-force priority for the
Mental Health Trust and the Departnent of Health and Socia

Services. He pointed out that the Al aska Psychiatry
Residency was recommended by the Alaska Health Care
Conmi ssion, and the Alaska Health W rk-force Investnent
Board. He explained that psychiatrists were integral to the
health care system and stated that psychiatrists are
doctors who specialize in the prevention, diagnosis, and
treatment of nental, enotional, and addictive disorders. He
announced that psychiatrists provide direct-patient care,

and consult and supervise other health care workers.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 03/06/12 1:36 P. M



4:35:31 PM

PAULA CULLENBERG, DI RECTCR, ALASKA SEA GRANT MARI NE
ADVI SORY PROGRAM ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), testified
in support of marine safety funding, and the Al aska Marine
Saf ety Educati on Associ ati on (AMSEA).

4:37:54 PM

EM LY NENON, AMERI CAN CANCER SOCI ETY CANCER ACTI ON NETWORK
ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), testified in support of
tobacco prevention funding. She stressed that obesity
prevention fundi ng should al so be consi dered.

Vi ce-chair Fairclough queried the percentage of snokers in
Al aska. Ms. Nenon replied youth snoking was at 16 percent
in 2009. She stated that there had been a drop in snoking
on the national |evel over the prior fifteen years. She
remarked that there was sonme success in |owering adult
snoking, and stated that recently the adult snoking |eve
in Alaska was at 19 percent.

4:41: 02 PM

Vice-chair Fairclough wondered if there would be an
intention to maintain the |ow percentage, or if there was
an intention to continue to drive the nunbers down. M.
Nenon felt that there needed to be a focus on significant
health disparities related to snoking.

Vi ce-chair Fairclough wondered if there was a possibility
to reduce the nunber of snokers even further, or if the
focus should be on maintaining a | ow nunber of snokers.

Co-Chair Stoltze wondered if there was feedback regarding
regulating the sale of wine and spirits. M. Nenon replied
that there needed to be recognition of the health benefits
of snoke-free businesses, including bars.

Co-Chair Stoltze noted sone prior discussions regarding
restricting pull-tabs, and felt that, 1in the extrene,
al cohol and tobacco coul d have negative consequences.

Co- Chair Thonmas expressed concern that the fund to restrict

tobacco could keep growing, and he feared that there would
be continued requests for noney to restrict tobacco use.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 03/06/12 1:36 P. M



4:47:03 PM

KRI STIN ENG.I SH, CHI EF OPERATI NG OFFI CER, COOK | NLET TRI BAL
COUNCI L, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), testified in
support of AVTEC Registered Nurse funding. She stated that
there was a Health Professions Qpportunity G ant that
targeted Al aska Native and Anmerican Indian people that were
in-need and/or lowinconme individuals. She stated the
grant's intent was to provide an easy-access career | adder
into health professions. She explained that the career
| adder could start wth Certified Nurse Assistant or
Certified Medical Assistant training and certification. She
furthered that the ladder could result in Registered Nurse
training certification

Representative Gara asked if the capacity was increased,
would there be sufficient dorm capacity. M. English
replied that nost of the RNs were living in their own
homes so dorm capacity was not a huge i ssue.

4:51: 50 PM

DAVI D WEAVER, SELF, ANCHORACGE (via teleconference), spoke
in support of education funding for the University of
Al aska. He recognized that the university had played a part
in many of the commttee nmenbers' |ives. The university had
hel ped to prepare him for his experiences and work in the
state. (Open-enrollnent public institutions leveled the
playing field and allowed people access to education. He
di scussed a new retention program at the University of
Al aska- Anchor age.

4:55:33 PM

DI RK SHUMAKER, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, KIDS CORPS HEAD START,
ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), testified in support of
early childhood education funding. He encouraged increased
investnment in Head Start funding.

Representative Gara queried the inpact of early childhood
education related to crine later in life. M. Shunmaker
noted a study in the state of Wshington related to many
| ong-term positive inpacts related to wearly childhood
educati on.

4:58:21 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 17 03/06/12 1:36 P. M



SARAH  LEONARD, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
testified in support of investing in early childhood
education, such as programs |ike Best Beginnings, the
| magi nation Library, and the Parents as Teachers program

4:59:50 PM

ROBI N  BRONEN, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
testified in support of a graduate prograns at the
University of Alaska related to climte change. She shared
a personal experience related to the Resilience and
Adapt ati on Program

5:02: 03 PM

JENNI FER LI NCOLN, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
vocal i zed support of the increase of funding for AMSEA. She
stressed that the program would support increased denmand
for marine safety. She pointed out that a traumatic injury
was the third | eading cause of death in Al aska.

5:04: 00 PM

PAULINE P. SM TH, PALMER (via teleconference), testified in
support of early childhood education funding. She expl ai ned
that she was a nenber of the Alaska Literacy Program and
stressed the inportance of I|iteracy prograns anong young
chil dren. She encouraged support of Best Begi nni ngs.

5:06: 49 PM

TERRI LYNN  DRAECER, STUDENT, UNI VERSI TY OF  ALASKA,
ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), testified in support of
addressing the backlog of deferred nmintenance at the
Uni versity of Al aska.

5:07:41 PM

MATTHEW  HOUSER, CORRECTI ONS  OFFI CER, ANCHORAGE (via
tel econference), testified against the staffing cuts to
corrections officers. He stressed that the staffing cuts
woul d cause extrenely |limted supervision.

5:09: 43 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 18 03/06/12 1:36 P. M



TERRI BLOCK, ALASKA BRAI N I NJURY ASSOCI ATI ON, WASILLA (via
tel econference), testified in support of nental health
funding for conpl ex behavior for brain injuries.

5:11:45 PM

PETER FI NN, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via tel econference), expressed
support of the advising conmponent of the University of
Anchorage that was renoved from the Operating Budget. He
felt that the general advising for new students was
seriously understaffed. He stated that the three advisors
were trying to advise 500 students per senester. He
strongly encouraged the commttee to add the advising
conponent back into the budget.

Vi ce-chair Fairclough remarked that she planned to add $2
mllion to increase graduation rates.

5:16: 07 PM

BOB LOHR, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), testified
in support of the Al aska Psychiatric Residency. He shared a
personal story regarding his experience wth depression
while living in Tok, Alaska. He stressed the need for
training for psychiatrists in Al aska.

5:18: 37 PM

MARTI N  CRONLEY, CORRECTI ONAL  OFFI CER, ANCHORAGE (vi a
t el econference), testified agai nst decr easi ng t he
correctional officers staffing. He felt that the intent
| anguage needed to be stronger in the Operating Budget.

5:20: 24 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze wondered iif the issue was a |abor
negotiation issue. M. Crowey felt it was a |abor issue
but the adm nistration thought it was not a | abor issue.

Representative Costello noted that there was an earlier
testifier who had communicated with her office that the
change in the correctional officer policy could disrupt
famlies.

HB 284 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 19 03/06/12 1:36 P. M



HB 285 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

Co- Chair Thomas di scussed the follow ng day's agenda.

#
ADJ OURNIVENT

5:28:16 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 5:28 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 20 03/06/12 1:36 P. M



